
06‐24‐20: These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 
 

1 
 

Town of Chester 1 

Planning Board Meeting 2 

Wednesday, June 24, 2020 3 

Virtual Meeting 4 

Approved Minutes 5 

 6 

For the duration of the COVID19 pandemic, the Planning Board will be meeting electronically under the 7 

emergency provisions of RSA 91A. https://zoom.us/j/92697843243,  or  via  telephone  ‐  dial  (301) 715‐8 

8592;  the  meeting ID is 926 9784 3243.  9 

 10 

Members & Staff Present: 11 

Brian Sullivan, Chairman 12 

Evan Sederquest, Vice Chairman 13 

Michael Weider, Member 14 

Elizabeth Richter, Member 15 

Richard Snyder, Member 16 

Aaron Hume, Alternate Member 17 

Andrew Hadik, Planning Coordinator 18 

 19 

Members Absent: 20 

Selectman Chuck Myette, Liaison 21 

 22 

Others Present at Various Times: 23 

Penny Williams 24 

Nate Miller, Deputy Executive Director of SNHPC 25 

Attorney Steve Bennett 26 

Attorney Marc Pinard 27 

Jon Rokeh, Rokeh Engineering 28 

 29 

Meeting Agenda 30 

 31 

7:00 PM – General Business 32 

 33 

1) Review & approve minutes for the 5/13/20 PB & 5/27/20 PB meetings. 34 

2) Discuss and approve the release of the Letter of Credit #11022018 for Ruth Ray Road/Buxton 35 

Estates Subdivision in the amount of $44,300. 36 

3) Review & approve a request from the Road Agent for the release of Offsite Improvement & 37 

Impact Fees to install the wearing course for Mulberry Lane. 38 

4) Discuss and approve the extension of the Conditions of Approval for Phase IV of the Southwoods 39 

Subdivision for one more year. 40 

5) Drowne gravel pit operations. 41 

6) Discuss the intent of ZO 5.3.3 – Special Exception Uses – 5.3.3.4 – Facilities for the processing of 42 

agricultural products provided there is no pollution of streams or sources of water supply. 43 

7) Discuss the first draft of the update of the Municipal Buildings Impact Fee Ordinance. 44 



06‐24‐20: These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 
 

2 
 

 Appointments 45 
  46 
None Scheduled 47 
 48 
7:15 Public Hearings 49 
 50 

None scheduled. 51 

 52 

Chair Sullivan opened the meeting at 7:00 PM. 53 

 54 

7:00 PM – General Business 55 

 56 

1) Review & approve minutes for the 5/13/20 & 5/27/20 PB meetings. 57 

 58 

Amendments were recommended to Line 66 “occurred,” Line 75 “police department has been 59 

scheduled,” Line 85 “issue” remove “of,” Line 101 “ensuring” not “ensuing.” 60 

 61 

Mr. Weider motioned to approve the May 13, 2020 minutes, as amended.  Ms. Richter seconded the 62 

motion.  A roll call vote was taken Sullivan – aye, Snyder – aye, Hume – aye,  Weider – aye, Sederquest 63 

– aye, Richter – aye.  The motion passed unanimously. 64 

 65 

Mr. Snyder motioned to approve the May 27, 2020 minutes, as written.  Vice‐Chair Sederquest 66 

seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken Sullivan – abstain, Snyder – aye, Hume – aye, Weider 67 

– aye, Sederquest – aye, Richter – aye.  The motion passed 5‐0‐1. 68 

 69 

2) Release of the Letter of Credit #11022018 for Ruth Ray Road/Buxton Estates Subdivision. 70 

 71 

Mr. Hadik explained the Planning Board had already sent a letter to the BOS saying that the road was 72 

ready to be accepted by the Town.  He noted there is no maintenance bond requirement because the 73 

subdivision’s approval predated this requirement.  On June 4th, the Selectmen voted to accept Ruth Ray 74 

Road is an official Town road.  Now the PB must vote to release the construction bond.   75 

 76 

Mr. Weider motioned to release the Letter of Credit for Ruth Ray Road for $44,300.  Vice‐Chair 77 

Sederquest seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken Sullivan – aye, Snyder – aye, Hume – aye, 78 

Weider – aye, Sederquest – aye, Richter – aye.  The motion passed unanimously. 79 

 80 

3) Release of Offsite Improvement & Impact Fees for Mulberry Lane. 81 
 82 
Mr. Hadik explained that Mulberry Lane was ground and re‐claimed, the subsoils were excavated and 83 
replaced for the first several hundred feet, and the binder course was repaved several years ago.  This is 84 
because there were issues with the way the road was initially constructed.  The Road Agent would now 85 
like to install the wearing course to protect the binder course.   86 
 87 
Mr. Hadik explained the cost is expected to be ~$40K.  The Road Agent is requesting the release of 88 
$13,831 plus interest from Offsite Improvement Fees for Quadrant A (Cedar View Estates ‐ $8,012 & 89 



06‐24‐20: These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 
 

3 
 

Villages at Chester $5,819).  Mr. Hadik noted this will close out the Villages at Chester account.  He 90 
noted the Road Agent is also requesting the release of $5,034 plus interest from Highway Impact Fees 91 
for Quadrant A.  The remainder of the paving cost will come from the Highway CIP fund.   92 
 93 
Mr. Hadik noted that Mulberry Lane is listed in the CIP, and has been for quite a few years. 94 
 95 
Mr. Weider motioned to release the discussed funds.  Vice‐Chair Sederquest seconded the motion.  A 96 
roll call vote was taken Sullivan – aye, Sederquest – aye, Weider – aye, Richter – aye, Snyder – aye and 97 
Hume – aye.  The motion passed unanimously. 98 
 99 
4) Extension of the Conditions of Approval for Phase IV of the Southwoods Subdivision. 100 
 101 
Mr. Hadik recommended extending the Conditional Approval contingent upon receiving the proper 102 
letter of credit (LOC) within five (5) business days. 103 
 104 
Attorney Marc Pinard, counsel for Brady Sullivan, requested ten (10) days.  There was some debate over 105 
this among the Board members. 106 
 107 
Mr. Hadik recommended extending the deadline to receive the approved LOC to the end of the business 108 
day (4:00 PM) on July 7th, 2020.  Mr. Snyder recommended having a draft by Monday at the latest.  109 
Attorney Pinard noted the reduced staffing at the bank due to the current Covid19 crisis.  Mr. Hadik 110 
suggested that the draft should be submitted to Attorney Bennett for his review by the end of business 111 
on Wednesday, July 1st, 2020. 112 
 113 
Mr. Weider motioned to extend the Conditions of Approval for one more year starting from Friday, 114 
June 26, 2020, contingent upon receiving an approved Letter of Credit by the close of business on July 115 
7, 2020 and a draft LOC for Counsel by July 1, 2020.  Mr. Snyder seconded the motion.  A roll call vote 116 
was taken Sullivan – aye, Sederquest – aye, Weider – aye, Richter – aye, Snyder – aye, Hume – aye.  117 
The motion passed unanimously. 118 
 119 
Mr. Hadik noted that a year had passed, and not one of the requirements for the recording of the plan 120 
had been fulfilled by Brady Sullivan.  He said we did not want to be having this discussion again a year 121 
from now, and asked Attorney Pinard if they would designate someone to start working on meeting 122 
these requirements.  Mr. Jon Rokeh, the engineer for Brady Sullivan on this project, said he would start 123 
working on the list (under Conditions of Approval – Section #3).   124 
 125 
Mr. Hadik also noted that no As‐Built plans had been received yet for Phases II and III.  He said the as‐126 
built plan submitted back in January for Phase III was incomplete (no locations for utilities shown, 127 
driveway locations for 7 of the units missing etc.), and no plan was ever submitted for Phase II.   128 
 129 
Mr. Rokeh said he would be working on this and requested Mr. Hadik to email him a copy of the 130 
incomplete plan that had been submitted. 131 
 132 
5.  Drowne Gravel Pit. 133 
 134 
Mr. Hadik explained that the BOS’s annual renewal of the excavation permit for the Drowne gravel pit 135 
behind the Mill Pine Village subdivision was temporarily put on hold.  Mr. Hadik noted he was part of 136 



06‐24‐20: These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 
 

4 
 

this discussion because there are questions about whether there is a reclamation plan for the 137 
excavation, there are also questions about the composting operation that was also occurring there, and 138 
about when the operations are slated to cease.   139 
 140 
Mr. Hadik noted he had received a phone call from Mr. Drowne who said his excavation activities are 141 
grandfathered.  Mr. Hadik noted remembering that the Board had been told, back when the subdivision 142 
was being approved, that the operations would cease once the subdivision was completed.  He noted 143 
the last home in the subdivision is currently under construction.   144 
 145 
Mr. Hadik also noted that later the issue of the non‐permitted composting operation came up, and Mr. 146 
Drowne’s surveyor, Kevin Hatch, said they would be applying for Site Plan Review.  However, no 147 
application was ever received.  Mr. Hadik reported that Mr. Drowne also said the composting has 148 
ceased.   Chair Sullivan questioned this, however, noting that one can still see a couple windrows of 149 
compost.  Mr. Hadik wondered if the windrows were on the abutting property.  He opined it appeared 150 
to be a clean operation, and likely is not impacting the Exeter River.   151 
 152 
Mr. Hadik said he would like to review the Town’s and State’s regulations that are applicable to this 153 
gravel pit, and determine whether a reclamation plan is required to be filed with the Town and/or State.  154 
Mr. Snyder asked if the grandfathering would exempt the operation from any other processes, and Mr. 155 
Hadik said he did not know.  When questioned, Mr. Hadik said he did not know if there were any limits 156 
on the amount of material removed, but the state does track and tax it.  Mr. Weider said he does not 157 
believe the operation is grandfathered, and questioned the value of a reclamation plan if there is no 158 
surety in place to ensure the reclamation occurs.  Mr. Hadik said he would check with NH DES about the 159 
reclamation requirements.  Mr. Snyder indicated he was fine with asking for a reclamation plan.   160 
 161 
Mr. Hadik asked if the Board was amenable to notifying the BOS to renew the excavation permit while 162 
he reviewed the Town’s and State’s regulations.  The Board agreed.   163 
 164 
6.  Intent of ZO 5.3.3 – Special Exception Uses – 5.3.3.4 – Facilities for the processing of agricultural 165 
products provided there is no pollution of streams or sources of water supply. 166 
 167 
Mr. Hadik explained that a question about this subsection of the ordinance came from the Building 168 
Inspector who wanted to know why it was added to the ordinance.  Mr. Hadik said he had researched 169 
the ordinance, and found that it dates to at least 1986.  There was discussion and conjecture that it had 170 
been added as the result of a couple different operations such as the illegal composting on Dump Road, 171 
the abattoir on Candia Road or the goat farm on Chester Street.  Mr. Hadik noted, however, that these 172 
operations all occurred many years after the adoption of this ordinance. 173 
 174 
Mr. Snyder said the language of this ordinance is probably intended to be broad.  Ms. Richter said it was 175 
likely intentionally broad given the Town’s historical support for agriculture.  Mr. Snyder indicated that 176 
in reference to the composting operation, he did not consider that to be an agricultural use.  Mr. Hume 177 
noted the runoff could be toxic.  The purpose is to not affect water flow or quality.  Mr. Hadik noted the 178 
RSAs are more specific now about agricultural activities.  Mr. Snyder said it would not hurt to leave this 179 
ordinance as it is currently written.   180 
 181 
7) Discuss the first draft of the update of the Municipal Buildings impact fee ordinance. 182 
 183 



06‐24‐20: These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 
 

5 
 

Nate Miller, the Deputy Executive Director of SNHPC, explained that he had redrafted the Municipal 184 
Buildings impact fee ordinance.  He said he reverified and/or updated all the numbers and calculations 185 
of the original ordinance.  He noted the overall methodology had not changed. 186 
 187 
Mr. Miller reviewed the first draft of the updated ordinance with the Board.  He said that some of the 188 
buildings’ square footages and values had changed in Figure 3 (Town of Chester Municipal Buildings 189 
Inventory) from those in the 2016 version.   190 
 191 
Mr. Hadik noted that the former Fire Station (now the Chester Street Highway Garage) was missing from 192 
the table.  He noted some of the square footages for some of the buildings had decreased because some 193 
paved areas were included back in 2016.   194 
 195 
Mr. Weider asked about showing which values had changed from 2016, and Mr. Miller said the changes 196 
can be noted in the table’s footnotes.  Mr. Hadik said the Town has had two significant re‐evaluations 197 
since 2016.  Mr. Weider noted that this information is available on the assessing cards.   198 
 199 
Mr. Miller said the values carried by the Town’s insurance carrier (PRIMEX) should be relied on for the 200 
building values, and the Tax Assessor’s database for the land values.   201 
 202 
Mr. Miller reviewed Figure 4 ‐ Proportionate Share Factors for Municipal Buildings Impact Fee.  He noted 203 
an extra category for residents not participating in the labor force had been added to the table.  He also 204 
said the percentage changes of the residential (83.67%) and non‐residential (16.33%) proportional 205 
shares, and noted this demographic change was to be expected. 206 
 207 
Mr. Miller discussed Figure 6 ‐ Nonresidential Impact Fees for Municipal Building Facilities.  He said 208 
another category “Other Services” had been added as a “catch all” category for development types not 209 
listed on the table.  Mr. Hadik noted two other development types are also planned to be added, 210 
healthcare and religious worship. 211 
 212 
Mr. Hadik said he and Mr. Miller are hoping to continue updating the remaining impact fee ordinances, 213 
and piggy‐back two or three of them onto other public hearings to save on newspaper noticing costs.  214 
Mr. Miller added that the Library and Highway impact fees will be the next ones to be updated. 215 
 216 
Other: 217 
 218 
When asked, Mr. Hadik noted the Town Clerk’s office is open for regular hours with social distancing and 219 
masks required.  The remaining Town offices are still closed to the public.  A sheetrock wall was built to 220 
isolate the other offices, and a set of double doors stored in the MPR mezzanine have been reinstalled in 221 
the main hallway. 222 
 223 

Adjournment 224 

Ms. Richter motioned to adjourn the meeting at 8:30 PM.  Mr. Snyder seconded the motion.  A roll call 225 

vote was taken, Sullivan – aye, Richter – aye, Snyder – aye, Sederquest – aye, Weider – aye, Hume – 226 

aye.  The motion passed unanimously.    227 

Future Meeting Dates 228 
 229 



06‐24‐20: These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 
 

6 
 

 July 1 – 230 

 July 8 – 231 

 July 22 – 232 
 233 

(Codes:  PH – public hearing, PHC – public hearing continuance, CD – conceptual discussion, HB – Home  234 
Business, LLA – Lot‐Line Adjustment, SPR – Site Plan Review, SUB – Subdivision, CUP Conditional Use 235 
Permit) 236 
 237 

Respectfully submitted, 238 

Daniel Hoijer 239 

Recording Secretary 240 


